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Subject: Interior Cabinet Affairs Report for 4/21/17

Attachments: DOI DAILY UPDATE FOR CABINET AFFAIRS 4-21-17.docx

Attached and copied below.
DOI DAILY UPDATE FOR CABINET AFFAIRS - 4/21/17

Doug Domenech, Senior Advisor

Status of the Secretary
The Secretary is in Montana today and through the weekend on personal time.

TODAY: Personal Day.

Sat. 4/22: Off
Sun. 4/23: Fly to Washington, DC.
Mon. 4/24: All day meeting with Outdoor Recreation Industry at Shenandoah National Park.

Tue. 4/25: Outdoor Industry press conference at Press Club
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Wed. 4/26: Meetings. Australia Minister for Energy and the Environment. Theodore Roosevelt
Conservation Partnership dinner.

Thu. 4/27: Meeting with Utah Governor and delegation.
Fri. 4/28: Speak at NRA meeting in Atlanta. (EO signing.)

Long Range: 5/25-5/28. The Secretary will participate in a CODEL sponsored by Senator
Murkowski. Arctic Council. Norway, Greenland, Alaska. Various AK events 5/29-5/31.

Media Announcements Today

Interior Announcements Planned for April 21.

(Released yesterday) “Alan Mikkelsen Named Reclamation's Deputy
Commissioner”
WASHINGTON — U.S. Secretary of the Interior Ryan Zinke and Bureau of Reclamation
Acting Commissioner David Murillo announced the appointment of Alan Mikkelsen of
Montana as Reclamation's Deputy Commissioner.

DOI & FWS will put out a press release announcing winners of the Junior Duck Stamp
contest. This is an annual contest which gets a lot of positive media attention. The funds
from stamp sales go to educate and engage youth in wildlife and wetlands conservation and
outdoor recreation.

FLAGGING: The Federal Duck Stamp, which is a mandatory purchase for anyone hunting
waterfowl in the U.S. will be announced in the coming weeks. In years previous, the winners
were invited to the White House. BIG sportsman issue.

Inspector General Report

Summary: Wood Group PSN Pleads Guilty to Submitting False Statements and is Ordered to
Pay $7 Million Fine: OIG investigated allegations that Wood Group Production Services
Network, Inc. (WGPSN) systematically failed to comply with Bureau of Safety and
Environmental Enforcement (BSEE) regulations related to offshore oil platform inspections, and
that WGPSN falsified records associated with required platform inspections. The company
admitted to submitting 87 false inspection reports to BSEE, and pled guilty to submitting false
statements to the Federal Government in violation of Title 18 USC section 1001. Under the plea
agreement, WGPSN was ordered to pay criminal fines of $7 million, and make a community
service payment of $500,000. Additionally, WGPSN entered into a 3-year corporate compliance
agreement with the U.S. Department of the Interior and the Environmental Protection Agency.

Executive Orders

Awaiting next EO on offshore energy. (4/28) DOI is suggesting it be signed at Interior.
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Awaiting EO on National Monuments. (Early May?)

Speaking Invitations

Accepted

4/24 Outdoor Recreation Industry Council at Shenandoah National Park

4/25 Outdoor Industries Association press event at the National Press Club accepted
4/26 Migratory Bird Conservation Commission accepted

4/26 TRCP Dinner (DC) accepted

4/27 Theodore Roosevelt Conservation Partnership BBQ (DC, REI)

4/27 Western Caucus Members Only Luncheon (DC, Capitol)

4/28 NRA Leadership Forum, George World Congress Center in Atlanta, GA.

5/1 Offshore Technology Conference (Houston, TX)

5/3 Public Lands Trust, Washington, DC

Regretted

4/24 Annual Tribal Self-Governance Consultation Conference (Spokane, WA)
4/25 Northwest Public Power Association Legislative Dinner (DC)

4/26 Ex-SOBs (Former Senate Aides Association) Luncheon remarks regretted
4/27 Blueprint 2025 Infrastructure Leadership Forum (DC)

4/28 Woodlawn Cemetery Arbor Day Celebration (NYC)

5/1 Ducks Unlimited at the Canadian Embassy regretted

Outstanding Invitations in Process

None

NEED CABINET AFFAIRS ASSISTANCE ON THESE ITEMS:

Sportsmen’s Event with POTUS/VP: Formal request submitted to Cabinet Affairs outlining a

proposed “Sportsmen’s” announcement of $1.1 billion in funding for hunting and fishing
activities. NOTE: the Department will need to announce this soon. Details also sent to WH IGA.
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Emergency Management

In Florida, the Cowbell Fire on Big Cypress National Preserve has burned 21,815 (no change)
acres. The fire is 55 (no change)-percent contained and managed by a Type-1 Incident
Management Team with 258 (+20) personnel, including 84 (-4) DOI personnel. There are 25 (no
change) residences threatened, and the containment date remains April 30. Moderate fire
activity was observed during the reporting period, and additional perimeter growth is possible
over the next several days.

In Georgia, the West Mims Fire in the Okefenokee National Wildlife Refuge has burned 25,464
(+2,854) acres. The fire is 3 (no change)-percent contained and managed by a Type-2 Incident
Management Team with 385 (+29) personnel, including 85 (+9) DOI personnel. There are 100
(no change) residences and 3 (no change) commercial structures threatened, and the
containment date is November 1. Active fire behavior was observed during this reporting period,
and additional perimeter growth is likely over the next 72 hours.

Media of Interest

Democrats Ask Secretary Zinke For Documents On Potential Energy Policy Changes.

Law360 (4/20, Powell) reports that “top Democrats on the House Natural Resources Committee
asked Interior Secretary Ryan Zinke on Thursday for copies of reports compiled after President
Donald Trump ordered the review and possible suspension of regulations that may burden
domestic energy development, with the lawmakers citing a need for proper oversight into
‘potentially massive’ policy changes.”

Hatch Speaks With Local Residents On Bears Ears Issue.

The Deseret (UT) News (4/20, O'Donoghue) reports that Sen. Orrin Hatch “toured San Juan
County on Thursday and met with local residents over the controversial Bears Ears National
Monument designation.” Hatch said, “When President Obama designated the Bears Ears
monument in December, he did so ignoring the voices of Utah leaders who were united in
opposition, and even more importantly, ignoring the voices of the local Utahns most affected by
this massive land grab.” Hatch “said he has met with both President Donald Trump and Interior
Secretary Ryan Zinke several times over the designation to discuss the next steps on how to
address the ‘mess’ the monument created.” He said that “includes finding ways to alter the
monument to still allow for protections but also provide more local control.”

Letter Pushes Congress To Address $12B Repair Effort For National Parks.

The Summit (CO) Daily (4/20, Fixler) reports that “more than 100 supporters from Colorado,
including Summit County’s three commissioners, signed a letter sent to U.S. Congress in early
April so funds are assigned to address these crucial deficiencies” at national parks “as soon as
possible.” Sen. Mark Warner “introduced the National Park Service Legacy Act the week before
the letter, with more than 1,800 national signatories, from The Pew Charitable Trusts’ Restore
America’s Parks initiative was submitted.” However, “pundits do not have high expectations for
the bill, which presently sits in committee.”
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Protests Planned For Earth Day.

The Washington Post (4/20, Stein) reports that activists and scientists on Saturday are expected
to show up in DC to take part in the Earth Day and March for Science rallies, which the Post
says “comes a week after the Tax March and a week before the People’s Climate March.” The
Post notes that these constitute part of a series of high profile protests taking place on
consecutive weekends in the nation’s capital, with large immigrant and LGBT rallies also
forthcoming in May and June. Attendees at last weekend’s Tax March notes that such protests
are “effective,” and have “credit[ed] demonstrations throughout the country with thwarting
Trump’s travel ban plans and stymieing the Republicans’ proposed health-care plan.”

Environmental Group Sues Over Repeal Of Wildlife Protections In Alaska Refuges.

The Hill (4/20, Wheeler) reports that “an environmental group is suing the Trump administration
for repealing protections for wolves, bears and other predatory animals that live on Alaska’s
national preserves.” The Center for Biological Diversity is “challenging the constitutionality of the
Congressional Review Act (CRA), which Congress used to pass legislation that Trump signed
repealing the Department of Interior's Refuges Rule.” In the lawsuit filed in the federal district
court in Anchorage, Alaska, the Center for Biological Diversity “claims that the CRA is
unconstitutional because it infringes on the powers of the executive branch in banning agencies
from issuing rules in the future that are ‘in substantially the same form’ as rules that have been
repealed.”

Three More Areas Off Eastern US Being Considered For Offshore Wind Energy Projects.

The “Morning Energy” blog of Politico (4/20) reported “three additional areas in the Atlantic
Ocean” are being considered “for offshore wind energy development — the Long Bay area of
South Carolina and broad swaths stretching from Nantucket, Mass., to New York and from New
Jersey to Virginia.” BOEM'’s renewable energy program manager Jim Bennett said at an
offshore wind conference, “We think that there’s much potential for additional areas in the
Atlantic.”

Chinese Ad Offers Homes In Palau And US Access.

Radio New Zealand (4/19) reports that “a Chinese website is advertising houses for sale in
Palau complete with a range of benefits including the right to live in the Pacific island nation for
up to 99 years.” According to the article,” the advertisement offers a Palau Residence Permit as
well as direct access to the US after one to two years.” The ad also “offered an easy visa
application process from Palau to other countries including Japan, South Korea, the Philippines
and Taiwan.”

White House Communications Report (sent to WH Comms, Thursday.)

No report was sent.

Federal Register Notices Cleared for Publishing

Item cleared for the Federal Register on Thursday.
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REG0006951 USGS Agency Information Collection Activities: Request for Comments To
comply with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, USGS announces its intent to request that
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) renew its authority to collect information regarding
ferrous metals. OMB previously approved this collection under OMB Control Number 1028-
0068. USGS is requesting public comments on the renewal for 60 days. Notice 04/20/2017.

Doug Domenech
Senior Advisor
US Department of the Interior
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DOI DAILY UPDATE FOR CABINET AFFAIRS —4/21/17
Doug Domenech, Senior Advisor

Status of the Secretary
The Secretary is in Montana today and through the weekend on personal time.

TODAY: Personal Day.

Sat. 4/22: Off

Sun. 4/23: Fly to Washington, DC.

Mon. 4/24: All day meeting with Outdoor Recreation Industry at Shenandoah National Park.
Tue. 4/25: Outdoor Industry press conference at Press Club

Wed. 4/26: Meetings. Australia Minister for Energy and the Environment. Theodore Roosevelt
Conservation Partnership dinner.

Thu. 4/27: Meeting with Utah Governor and delegation.

Fri. 4/28: Speak at NRA meeting in Atlanta. (EO signing.)

Long Range: 5/25-5/28. The Secretary will participate in a CODEL sponsored by Senator Murkowski.
Arctic Council. Norway, Greenland, Alaska. Various AK events 5/29-5/31.

Media Announcements Today
Interior Announcements Planned for April 21.

o (Released yesterday) “Alan Mikkelsen Named Reclamation's Deputy Commissioner”
WASHINGTON — U.S. Secretary of the Interior Ryan Zinke and Bureau of Reclamation Acting
Commissioner David Murillo announced the appointment of Alan Mikkelsen of Montana as
Reclamation's Deputy Commissioner.

e DOI & FWS will put out a press release announcing winners of the Junior Duck Stamp contest. This is
an annual contest which gets a lot of positive media attention. The funds from stamp sales go to
educate and engage youth in wildlife and wetlands conservation and outdoor recreation.

FLAGGING: The Federal Duck Stamp, which is a mandatory purchase for anyone hunting waterfowl in
the U.S. will be announced in the coming weeks. In years previous, the winners were invited to the

White House. BIG sportsman issue.

Inspector General Report

Summary: Wood Group PSN Pleads Guilty to Submitting False Statements and is Ordered to Pay $7
Million Fine: OIG investigated allegations that Wood Group Production Services Network, Inc. (WGPSN)
systematically failed to comply with Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement (BSEE) regulations
related to offshore oil platform inspections, and that WGPSN falsified records associated with required
platform inspections. The company admitted to submitting 87 false inspection reports to BSEE, and pled
guilty to submitting false statements to the Federal Government in violation of Title 18 USC section
1001. Under the plea agreement, WGPSN was ordered to pay criminal fines of $7 million, and make a
community service payment of $500,000. Additionally, WGPSN entered into a 3-year corporate
compliance agreement with the U.S. Department of the Interior and the Environmental Protection
Agency.
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Executive Orders
Awaiting next EO on offshore energy. (4/28) DOI is suggesting it be signed at Interior.
Awaiting EO on National Monuments. (Early May?)

Speaking Invitations

Accepted

4/24 Outdoor Recreation Industry Council at Shenandoah National Park
4/25 Outdoor Industries Association press event at the National Press Club accepted
4/26 Migratory Bird Conservation Commission accepted

4/26 TRCP Dinner (DC) accepted

4/27 Theodore Roosevelt Conservation Partnership BBQ (DC, REI)

4/27 Western Caucus Members Only Luncheon (DC, Capitol)

4/28 NRA Leadership Forum, George World Congress Center in Atlanta, GA.
5/1 Offshore Technology Conference (Houston, TX)

5/3 Public Lands Trust, Washington, DC

Regretted

4/24 Annual Tribal Self-Governance Consultation Conference (Spokane, WA)
4/25 Northwest Public Power Association Legislative Dinner (DC)

4/26 Ex-SOBs (Former Senate Aides Association) Luncheon remarks regretted
4/27 Blueprint 2025 Infrastructure Leadership Forum (DC)

4/28 Woodlawn Cemetery Arbor Day Celebration (NYC)

5/1 Ducks Unlimited at the Canadian Embassy regretted

Outstanding Invitations in Process
None

NEED CABINET AFFAIRS ASSISTANCE ON THESE ITEMS:

Sportsmen’s Event with POTUS/VP: Formal request submitted to Cabinet Affairs outlining a proposed

“Sportsmen’s” announcement of $1.1 billion in funding for hunting and fishing activities. NOTE: the
Department will need to announce this soon. Details also sent to WH IGA.

Emergency Management

In Florida, the Cowbell Fire on Big Cypress National Preserve has burned 21,815 (no change) acres. The
fire is 55 (no change)-percent contained and managed by a Type-1 Incident Management Team with 258
(+20) personnel, including 84 (-4) DOI personnel. There are 25 (no change) residences threatened, and
the containment date remains April 30. Moderate fire activity was observed during the reporting period,
and additional perimeter growth is possible over the next several days.

In Georgia, the West Mims Fire in the Okefenokee National Wildlife Refuge has burned 25,464 (+2,854)
acres. The fire is 3 (no change)-percent contained and managed by a Type-2 Incident Management Team
with 385 (+29) personnel, including 85 (+9) DOI personnel. There are 100 (no change) residences and 3
(no change) commercial structures threatened, and the containment date is November 1. Active fire
behavior was observed during this reporting period, and additional perimeter growth is likely over the
next 72 hours.
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Media of Interest

Democrats Ask Secretary Zinke For Documents On Potential Energy Policy Changes.

Law360 (4/20, Powell) reports that “top Democrats on the House Natural Resources Committee asked
Interior Secretary Ryan Zinke on Thursday for copies of reports compiled after President Donald Trump
ordered the review and possible suspension of regulations that may burden domestic energy
development, with the lawmakers citing a need for proper oversight into ‘potentially massive’ policy
changes.”

Hatch Speaks With Local Residents On Bears Ears Issue.

The Deseret (UT) News (4/20, O'Donoghue) reports that Sen. Orrin Hatch “toured San Juan County on
Thursday and met with local residents over the controversial Bears Ears National Monument
designation.” Hatch said, “When President Obama designated the Bears Ears monument in December,
he did so ignoring the voices of Utah leaders who were united in opposition, and even more
importantly, ignoring the voices of the local Utahns most affected by this massive land grab.” Hatch
“said he has met with both President Donald Trump and Interior Secretary Ryan Zinke several times over
the designation to discuss the next steps on how to address the ‘mess’ the monument created.” He said
that “includes finding ways to alter the monument to still allow for protections but also provide more
local control.”

Letter Pushes Congress To Address $12B Repair Effort For National Parks.

The Summit (CO) Daily (4/20, Fixler) reports that “more than 100 supporters from Colorado, including
Summit County’s three commissioners, signed a letter sent to U.S. Congress in early April so funds are
assigned to address these crucial deficiencies” at national parks “as soon as possible.” Sen. Mark Warner
“introduced the National Park Service Legacy Act the week before the letter, with more than 1,800
national signatories, from The Pew Charitable Trusts’ Restore America’s Parks initiative was submitted.”
However, “pundits do not have high expectations for the bill, which presently sits in committee.”

Protests Planned For Earth Day.

The Washington Post (4/20, Stein) reports that activists and scientists on Saturday are expected to show
up in DC to take part in the Earth Day and March for Science rallies, which the Post says “comes a week
after the Tax March and a week before the People’s Climate March.” The Post notes that these
constitute part of a series of high profile protests taking place on consecutive weekends in the nation’s
capital, with large immigrant and LGBT rallies also forthcoming in May and June. Attendees at last
weekend’s Tax March notes that such protests are “effective,” and have “credit[ed] demonstrations
throughout the country with thwarting Trump’s travel ban plans and stymieing the Republicans’
proposed health-care plan.”

Environmental Group Sues Over Repeal Of Wildlife Protections In Alaska Refuges.

The Hill (4/20, Wheeler) reports that “an environmental group is suing the Trump administration for
repealing protections for wolves, bears and other predatory animals that live on Alaska’s national
preserves.” The Center for Biological Diversity is “challenging the constitutionality of the Congressional
Review Act (CRA), which Congress used to pass legislation that Trump signed repealing the Department
of Interior’s Refuges Rule.” In the lawsuit filed in the federal district court in Anchorage, Alaska, the
Center for Biological Diversity “claims that the CRA is unconstitutional because it infringes on the powers
of the executive branch in banning agencies from issuing rules in the future that are ‘in substantially the
same form’ as rules that have been repealed.”
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Three More Areas Off Eastern US Being Considered For Offshore Wind Energy Projects.

The “Morning Energy” blog of Politico (4/20) reported “three additional areas in the Atlantic Ocean” are
being considered “for offshore wind energy development — the Long Bay area of South Carolina and
broad swaths stretching from Nantucket, Mass., to New York and from New Jersey to Virginia.” BOEM’s
renewable energy program manager Jim Bennett said at an offshore wind conference, “We think that
there’s much potential for additional areas in the Atlantic.”

Chinese Ad Offers Homes In Palau And US Access.

Radio New Zealand (4/19) reports that “a Chinese website is advertising houses for sale in Palau
complete with a range of benefits including the right to live in the Pacific island nation for up to 99
years.” According to the article,” the advertisement offers a Palau Residence Permit as well as direct
access to the US after one to two years.” The ad also “offered an easy visa application process from
Palau to other countries including Japan, South Korea, the Philippines and Taiwan.”

White House Communications Report (sent to WH Comms, Thursday.)
No report was sent.

Federal Register Notices Cleared for Publishing
Iltem cleared for the Federal Register on Thursday.

REG0006951 USGS Agency Information Collection Activities: Request for Comments To comply with the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, USGS announces its intent to request that the Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) renew its authority to collect information regarding ferrous metals. OMB previously
approved this collection under OMB Control Number 1028-0068. USGS is requesting public comments
on the renewal for 60 days. Notice 04/20/2017.
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